



MINUTES OF A MEETING
of
THANINGTON WITHOUT PARISH COUNCIL
held at
St Faiths Hall, New House Lane, Thanington Without
on Monday, Sept 10th 2018

PRESENT: - Councillors, Cllr Mrs S. Kilczewski, A. Grover, Cllr A. Baker, T. Davis, T. Maple, G. Page, D. Smith, K. Stokes and Clerk Roger Cheeseworth.

Visitors – Sarah Guest, Camilla Swire

CHAIRMAN: - Councillor Graham Page

APOLOGIES: - Cllr T. Baker (Work)

1. **APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING:** The Minutes of the July Meeting were unanimously approved and duly signed by the Chairman.
2. **COUNCIL**
 - a. Declaration of any member's interest in agenda items – None
 - b. Changes in Disclosable Pecuniary Interests. – None
 - c. Any other interests – None
 - d. The Clerk confirmed that payments approved at the July 2018 meeting had been dispatched.
 - e. The Clerk confirmed that the Web Site has been updated. Now 5 years Audit of accounts is on web site. And includes quick links on home page.
 - f. The Audit has come back clear apart from the mistake of a £11,597 instead of £11,571 in section 2 Box 4 as reported to council by Clerk.
 - g. Clerk has put in a section 142 of Highways Act 1980 – Request for licence to cultivate the public highway. Also, has asked if TWPC could take over responsibility for the verges in Thanington and be paid by KCC to do it. Some details arrived today.
 - h. University of Kent Air Monitoring Strategy. 3 months now complete and 1-month site monitoring completed in two locations. PC to discuss payment to compensate for electricity and consumables. VC suggested we defer until next meeting which was accepted.
 - i. Councillors Projects 2018/19

Councillor	Br/Forward	Total 2018	Spent	Remaining
Cllr Graham Page	£300.00	£600.00	£400.00	£500.00
Cllr Ken Stokes	£300.00	£300.00	£0.00	£600.00
Cllr Terry Maple	£300.00	£300.00	£0.00	£600.00
Cllr Toni Baker	£300.00	£300.00	£0.00	£600.00
Cllr Susan Kilczewski	£300.00	£300.00	£0.00	£600.00
Cllr Terry Davis	£300.00	£300.00	£0.00	£600.00
Cllr Adrian Baker	£300.00	£300.00	£0.00	£600.00
Cllr Dave Smith	£300.00	£300.00	£0.00	£600.00
Cllr Angela Grover	£300.00	£300.00	£0.00	£600.00

3. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL:

- a. **Agenda**
 - i. Agenda – Nothing for TWPC
- b. **List of Application**
 - i. CA/18/0
- c. **Decisions**
 - i. CA/18/00490/FUL – Land at Cockering Road – Granted
 - ii. CA/18/00711/FUL – 83 Thanington Road – Granted

4. ONGOING PARISH MATTERS:

- a. Telephone Box in Thanington Road needs removing. Clerk has emailed BT and asked why not completed. Removal has been programmed before September this year.
- b. Start of Thanington Road Footpath drains flooding Ref 330972. More work required.
- c. Dog Bin by post box needs changing. (TD) New bins from £100 to £200 we would need someone to fix.
- d. Work on drains has been suspended due to work load on KCC. Ref 359881.
- e. Drain in Lay by by Pelican crossing over flows when wet. Ref 350493. More work required
- f. We still had not received info on yellow lines in small laybye.

5. APPROVAL OF PAYMENTS:

Item	Purpose	Cheque No	Amount	Note
a)	VI Annual Web Site	200567	£144.00	Signed in Aug GP & TM
b)	Clerk's Salary Sept 2018	200568	£1,010.15	
c)	Inland Revenue	200569	£229.40	
d)	G & C Services	200570	£907.00	July & August
e)	Viking Direct	200571	£128.48	Stamps
f)	Audit Commission	200572	£240.00	
g)				
h)				
i)				
j)				
Total for Sept 2018			£2,659.03	

Proposed by Cllr G. Page. Seconded by Cllr D. Smith. These two councillors signed the cheques.

6. FINANCES:

Type	Name	Paid out	Paid In	Balance	Note
	Balance brought forward			£24,458.57	
Chqs	Payments for July	£3,468.60		£20,989.97	
Current balance at 3 Sept 18				£20,989.97	Sheet 357 match

- a. HSBC Statement of No-Notice Account
 - i. Current balance at 3 July 2018 sheet 108 **£10,306.23 includes £1.80 Interest**
- b. POSB Statement of Investment Account
 - i. Current balance at 1 January 2018 **£10,964.16**
- c. Current Account Statement was checked against bank statement. No-Notice account was checked against bank statements.

7. CORRESPONDENCE:

- a. Agenda for Parish Council Meeting (**agenda pack**)
- b. Minutes for Parish Council Meeting (**agenda pack**)
- c. Audit Commission report
- d. HSBC letter saying they will no longer be returning cleared cheques
- e. PG Lemon Newsletter
- f. St Nicholas & St Faith Mag
- g. Hambrook Marsh July Newsletter
- h. Hilltop News for North Ward
- i. Thanington Park Drawings
- j. Nitrogen Dioxide Readings for TW (May)
- k. Letter from Canterbury South asking for funds.
- l. Iffin Lane Houses (The Bungalow)
- m. Press cutting Quinn
- n. Letters form and to Pentland
- o. Letter from Paula thanking Parish for donation to children's zoo trip, Thank youcard made by the children.
- p. Unsolicited advertising – None

8. ON-GOING PROJECTS

- a. Larkey Valley Wood – No Report'
- b. Footpaths – 2018 cut continue
- c. Speed Watch –Had been carried out in New House lane.
- d. LHM – July Newsletter
- e. Air Pollution – Third months checks are now underway in 10 locations.

9. REPORTS:

- a. Chair asked visitors if they would like to speak. They both spoke about Cockerling Road developments and how it would ruin the area. Canterbury City Council have ignored the effect it will have on the local community. Cllr Dave Smith gave the parish councils views on the plans and the clerk explained the meetings the PC had had with CCC & Pentland Homes. Camilla Swire asked several question about the PC and said she was encouraged that the PC were taking a pro-active approach.

10. PARISH AFFAIRS:

- a. Chair
 - i. 113 Ashford Road vegetation over 40% of footpath.
- b. TD
 - i. Asked if we were going public with Air Pollution Survey. It was agreed to do that.
- c. AB
 - i. Sign Post by traffic lights on A2 slip road has been hit by car.

NEXT MEETING: The next Meeting will be held at the T.N.R.C. on **Monday, Oct 8th 2018.**

CLOSURE: There being no further business, the Chairman declared the meeting closed at 20:25